
Annual Financial 
Report 

2009



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

Kansas Board of Regents and Officers 1 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 2 

 

Statement of Net Assets 12 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 13 

Statement of Cash Flows 14 

 

Notes to Financial Statements 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KANSAS BOARD  
 OF REGENTS 
Donna L. Shank  Jill Docking 
Jarold Boettcher William Thornton 
Gary Sherrer Richard Hedges 
Dan Lykins Janie Perkins 
 Christine Downey-Schmidt 

 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 
Robert E. Hemenway 
Chancellor 
 
Theresa Gordzica 
Chief Business and Financial Planning Officer 
 

Lawrence Campus 
Richard Lariviere  
Executive Vice Chancellor / Provost 
 
Diane H. Goddard  
Vice Provost for Finance 
 

Medical Center Campus 
Dr. Barbara Atkinson, M.D. 
Executive Vice Chancellor 
 
Harold E.  Phillips 
Vice Chancellor for Administration 
 
R. Michael Keeble 
Associate Vice Chancellor of Finance 
 

Financial Officers 
Katrina Yoakum 
Comptroller, Lawrence Campus 
 
Robert W. Weseloh 
Controller, Medical Center 

1



 

THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial performance of the University of Kansas 
based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions and is designed to assist readers in understanding the 
accompanying financial statements.  These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) principles, with the exception of GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations Are Component Units.  The University has made the decision not to include the Kansas University 
Endowment Association (KUEA) within the University’s unaudited financial statements.  This discussion – along with the 
financial statements and related footnote disclosures – has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction 
with the statements and footnotes.  The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion are the responsibility of 
management. 
 
 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

 
The Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the University at a point in time (at the end of 
the fiscal year).  Its purpose is to present a financial snapshot of the University.  The Statement of Net Assets includes all 
assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector 
institutions.  Under the accrual basis of accounting all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

 
Within the Statement of Net Assets, assets and liabilities are further classified as current or non-current.  Current 
classification distinguishes those assets that are highly liquid and available for immediate and unrestricted use by the 
University, and those liabilities likely to be settled in the next 12 months. 

 
Net assets are divided into three categories: 

1. Invested in capital assets, net of debt, indicates the university’s equity in property, plant, and equipment owned 
by the University. 

2. Restricted net assets are further divided into two subcategories, non-expendable and expendable.  The corpus of 
non-expendable restricted resources is available only for investment purposes.  Expendable restricted net assets 
are available for expenditure by the University but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or 
external entities that have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. 

3. Unrestricted net assets are available to the University for any lawful purpose of the institution. 
 
Total assets at June 30, 2009 were $1,372.8 million, an increase of $84.9 million (7%).  Capital net assets comprised 63%, 
or $864.1 million of the assets. 
 
Total liabilities were $490.8 million at June 30, 2009, an increase of $65.0 million (15%) compared to $425.9 million at 
June 30, 2008.  Long-term liabilities comprised 65%, or $321.2 million of the liabilities.  
 
Total net assets at June 30, 2009 were $882.0 million, a $20.0 million increase over the prior year, or a 2% increase in net 
assets.  The breakout of net assets is shown below: 
 

Capital Assets, net of related debt………….. $577,898,900 
Restricted net assets ………………………... 158,779,693 
Unrestricted net assets ……………………… 145,279,066 
        Total net assets……………………….. $881,957,659 
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The composition of current and non-current assets and liabilities and net assets is displayed below for both the 2009 and 
2008 fiscal year-ends (in thousands): 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets presents the total revenues earned and expenses incurred 
by the University for operating, non-operating and other related activities during a period of time.  Its purpose is to assess 
the University’s operating results. 
 
Revenues 
 
Total revenues increased by $28.8 million, from $978.8 million to $1,007.6 million, an overall increase of 3%. 
 
Operating revenues at the University as of June 30, 2009 increased by 7% over the previous fiscal year from $635.7 million 
to $677.6 million in 2009.  Overall operating revenues are very consistent with prior year as student enrollment remains 
relatively static in comparison to prior year.  In addition there were moderate tuition and fee increases as well as minimal 
growth in research revenue.  The following is a brief summary of the significant changes: 
 

• Sales and services of educational departments increased by 17% from $47.9 million to $56.1 million in 2009.  A 
significant portion of the increase is the result of the Medical Center’s sales and services of educational 
departments increasing 30%, $5.1 million over prior year.  The result is due to an increased number of residents 
within the graduate medical education program as well as new hospitals joining the Medical Center’s graduate 
medical education program in 2009.  Within the graduate medical program, area hospitals provide cash support to 
the Medical Center for the medical residents working within the hospitals. 

• Auxiliary Enterprises – Parking revenues increased by 14% from $8.5 million to $9.7 million in 2009.  The 
increase is due to the campus transportation student fee increasing 80% from $36/sememster to $65/semester.  
This increase in fees allowed KU on Wheels to become a fare free system in which students only need their 
student ID to board any bus. 

• Other operating revenues increased $1.9 million from $17.5 to $19.4 million, or 11%.  The majority of the 
increase is due to the KU Hospital increasing its unrestricted financial support to the Medical Center.  During 
2009, KU Hospital made payments for the Medical Center’s support totaling $3.6 million.   

 
Total non-operating revenues were down 7% from the prior year from $317.7 million to $296.8 million.  Following is a 
brief summary of the significant changes: 
 

• Gifts increased $7.4 million (29%) in 2009.  Gifts received consisted primarily of monetary support provided by 
the Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA).  The level of support from KUEA varies from year to 
year. 

3



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 

 

• Investment income decreased $19.3 million (185%) from $10.4 million to ($8.9) million in 2009.  The University, 
as well as its component units, recognized a significant increase in unrealized losses in comparison to prior years.   

 
 
Other revenues included the following: 
• Capital appropriations and capital gifts increased from $24.8 million to $32.8 million, or 32%.  The level of 

capital appropriations and capital gifts varies from year to year based upon the source of funding used for capital 
projects.  The majority of this increase was in capital appropriations.  In 2008, a deferred maintenance cost study 
was completed.  This cost study identified $284.7 million ($209.1 million for KULC and $75.6 million for 
KUMC) in deferred maintenance.  As such, the University received an increase in funding from the State’s 
Infrastructure Maintenance Program towards deferred maintenance.  Although this program was started in 2008 an 
increase in appropriated revenues and expenses occurred as more deferred maintenance projects were completed 
in 2009 versus 2008. 

 
The composition of these revenues is displayed in the following graph: 
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Expenses 
 
Operating expenses were $966.5 million for the 2009 fiscal year, an increase over the prior year of $33.4 million, or 4%.  
Overall operating expenses were very consistent with prior year.  The average salary increase for FY 2009 was 3%. 
University’s departments were also challenged to keep their other operating expenses low in anticipation of future budget 
cuts.  Following is a brief summary of the significant changes: 
 

• Operations and maintenance of plant increased $6.0 million (10%) from $62.5 million to $68.5 million in 2009.  
$4.8 million of the increase is the Medical Center’s operation and maintenance expense increasing from $22.0 
million to $26.9 million, a $4.9 million increase.  During 2009, the Medical Center completed several interior-
remodeling projects, all under the University’s capitalization policy amount.  As such, the projects were expensed 
to operation & maintenance of plant expense.   

• Other operating expenses decreased $3.8 million (72%) from $5.4 million to $1.5 million in 2009.  Other 
operating expenses include a variety of sources and the level of activity of these expenses varies from year to year.   
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Non-operating expenses increased 93% from $11.0 million in 2008 to $21.3 million in 2009.  Following is a summary of 
the significant changes.   
 

• Interest expense increased 16% from $12.8 million to $14.8 million in 2009 as the result of increased debt the 
University has incurred over the past year.   

• Other non-operating expenses increased $8.3 million from ($1.8) million in 2008 to $6.5 million in 2009.  During 
2009 the State of Kansas issued a mid-year budget rescission whereby the University and the Medical Center had 
to return funds to the State in the amounts of $4.1 million and $1.8 million, respectively.  A significant portion of 
this rescission was in the form of a Group Health and Death and Disability insurance premium moratorium in 
which the University was required to pay the State the amount of employer premiums saved.  Additionally, a 
decrease of $2 million in other non-operating revenues occurred in 2009 as a result of decreased funds for FEMA 
Reimbursement.  In 2008 the University recognized approximately $2.0 million in non-operating revenue for 
FEMA Reimbursement for storm damage that occurred 2006.  During 2009 the University only received $250k as 
the project was completed.   

 
The composition of total expenses, including operating and non-operating, is displayed below: 
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Extraordinary Items 
 
The University did not have any special and/or extraordinary items in 2008 or 2009. 
 
Endowment Expenses Paid On Behalf of University 
 
The Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA), an independent, not-for-profit organization whose primary 
mission is to raise funds for the University, provides direct and indirect support to the University that is not entirely 
reflected in the University’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.  Expense items paid on behalf 
of the University by KUEA include expenses such as scholarships and fellowships, salaries, construction, equipment, 
books, works of art, and travel.  Total University support provided by KUEA equaled approximately $100.5 million and 
$108.7 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
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The following support items totaling $24.4 million are reflected in the University’s statements for 2009. 
 

• Capital Projects.  KUEA sponsored many capital projects throughout the year with a combined approximate 
value of $2.5 million.  The major capital project that benefited from KUEA’s fundraising efforts was the 
completion of the construction of Krehbiel Scholarship Hall ($1.1million in 2009 and $2.9 million in 2008),  

• Salaries and other operating expenses.  KUEA reimbursed the University approximately $21.9 million for 
various faculty and staff member salaries, including the University’s distinguished professors, and other minor 
operating expenses.  The salary expense is reflected in the University’s statements as it represents a more accurate 
reflection of the University’s operating expenses.  KUEA’s reimbursement is reflected as a gift to the University 
within non-operating revenues. 

 
Net Assets 
 
Net assets increased by $19.9 million over the previous fiscal year.  This significant increase in net assets can primarily be 
attributed to the continued support of the University via capital and non-capital gifts during 2009. 
 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents cash receipts and payments of the University during a period of time.  Its purpose is 
to assess the University’s ability to generate future net cash flows and meet its obligations as they come due.  The 
following is a condensed statement of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008: 
 
CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD 
(in thousands of dollars) 
 

    
 June 30, 2009  June 30, 2008 
Net cash provided (used) by:    
  Operating activities $  (224,840) $  (238,547) 
  Non-capital financing activities 304,420 309,035 
  Capital and related financing activities (59,826) (76,717) 
  Investing activities 2,118 18,788 
Net increase in cash 21,872 12,559 
   
Beginning cash and cash equivalent balances 180,148 167,589 
   
Ending cash and cash equivalent balances $   202,020 $   180,148 

 
Cash flows from operating activities will always be negative since GASB requires state appropriations to be reported as 
cash flows from noncapital financing activities.  Cash flows from capital financing activities include all plant funds and 
related long-term debt activities.  Cash flows from investing activities show all uses of cash and cash equivalents to 
purchase investments, and all increases in cash and cash equivalents as a result of selling investments or earning income on 
cash and investments. 
 
Cash used by operating activities decreased $13.7 million (6%).  This decrease in the use of cash is the result of operating 
expenses increasing slightly less than the University’s operating revenues (tuition and fees, grants and contracts, auxiliary 
income) offset by decreased cash from the Athletics operations.   
 
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities decreased by $4.6 million (1%).  The decrease is the result of the 
University’s $10.4 million decrease in state appropriations offset by an increase of $7.0 million in non-capital gifts 
received throughout the year from several sources. 
 
Cash used by capital and related financing activities decreased by $16.9 million (22%).  During 2008, the University spent 
a significant amount of cash on several large construction projects, including construction of its Structural Biology Center 
(SBC Phase III), expansion of the Kansas Law Enforcement Training Center (KLETC), and construction of a new state-of-
art football training and practice facility.  While the University continued to invest significant funds into its facilities during 
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2009, the majority of projects under construction in 2009 were smaller in scope.  The increase in construction cash flows 
was partially offset by the issuance of $53.3 million in revenue bonds for the School of Pharmacy expansion and the Allen 
Field House complex remodeling project as well as a $5 million bond anticipation note payable for financing Jayhawker 
Tower project. 
 
Cash flows from investing activities decreased $16.7 million.  The decrease in investment activity is a result of increased 
investment purchases related to the two revenue bonds, noted above, in addition to the lower realized investment income in 
2009. 
                                                              
 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The University made significant investments in capital during the 2008-2009 fiscal year.  Detailed information regarding 
capital asset additions, retirements, and depreciation is available in Note 8 to the financial statements. 
 
The following is a brief summary of the construction projects that were completed during the current fiscal year: 
 

• During the spring of 2004, student leadership agreed to changes in the number and location of seats committed to 
students for men's basketball games in Allen Fieldhouse, as part of the new seating program initiated by Kansas 
Athletics, Inc.  As part of this agreement, Athletics agreed to pay the costs of the addition to the Student 
Recreation Center and Fitness Center.  The $6.3 million expansion project consisted of the construction, 
furnishing and equipping of an addition to the Center.  The design of the project addressed the need to expand 
heavily used spaces within the current Center, including but not limited to the free weights area, racquetball courts 
and gymnasiums.  The project included the following elements: a gymnasium expansion, including two multi-
purpose basketball courts with wood floors and two multi-purpose courts with synthetic sports flooring; additional 
gymnasium equipment, including swing-down volleyball nets on two courts, curtain dividers, scoreboards and 
sound system; a running track extension; a new multi-purpose area, including two racquetball courts and a new 
martial arts room to allow the existing one to be vacated to expand the existing free weights area; additional 
storage areas, both in the gymnasium and multi-purpose areas; and additional public restrooms, 
mechanical/electrical equipment rooms and telecommunications closets.  Revenue bonds were issued for this 
project in May 2007.  This project was completed in December 2008.   

 
• During 2007, Athletics broke ground for their new state-of-art football training and practice facility.  It is the 

desire of Athletics to provide football and training facilities that are competitive with other programs in the Big 
Twelve Conference and beyond.  The $32.9 million project provides Athletics with additional office space for 
football operations, as well as a first class player clubhouse with complete training amenities.  The project 
included a building and two artificial turf practice fields and was funded by private donations.  This project was 
completed in October 2008.   

 
• Construction was completed on Krehbiel Scholarship Hall in July 2008.  The $4.0 million, three-story, 18,000-

square-foot scholarship hall houses 50 students in two-person rooms and four-person suites.  Krehbiel Scholarship 
Hall features quiet geothermal heating and cooling systems and exteriors designed to blend with the 
neighborhood’s turn-of-the-century homes. 

 
• In Fall 2006, KU Center for Research (KUCR) began construction on Phase III of the Structural Biology Center.  

Financed by revenue bonds, the $16.0 million project consisted of a 35,000 square foot addition to the existing 
Structural Biology Center research building on Lawrence’s West Campus.  The project included new lab space, 
new core research service space, a high throughput-screening lab as well as other research facilities.  KUCR also 
began construction on Phase IV in 2008.  The Kansas Bioscience Authority financed the $5.0 million project that 
consisted primarily of office and lab space for Blake Peterson, Kansas Bioscience Authority’s first Eminent 
Scholar, and his graduate students.  Both phases were completed in June 2009. 

 
• During 2008, the Medical Center made additional modifications to its Kansas Life Sciences Innovation Center 

(KLSIC).  The $2.3 million project was designed to improve specific sterile environments required for the 
Medical Center’s research grants and contract.  The project was completed in Spring 2009.   
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Additionally, the University was involved in several construction projects that were under construction or in planning and 
design phases at year-end: 

• Based on a study completed in 2002, the Kansas Law Enforcement Training Center (KLETC) has been 
transforming the training programs for law enforcement officers to a contemporary standard for scenario-based 
training methodology.  Beginning in January 2005, KLETC increased the total enrollment capacity to 120 officers 
in two simultaneous basic training programs.  As a result of the enrollment increases as well as other operational 
needs, KLETC is expanding and renovating its training center facilities.  Specific components of the expansion 
project include a new dormitory, an emergency vehicle operations driver training course and garage, a tactical 
shooting building and multi-purpose space that can accommodate 120 individuals for shared classes or be 
subdivided as needed.  The expansion of the existing Welch Hall Student/Staff dining hall is also included as well 
as other campus site and infrastructure improvements.  The total projected cost of the facility improvements is 
$16.4 million and is funded by revenue bonds issued in December 2007. 

 
• In response to recent Regent’s University deferred maintenance studies, the Lawrence Campus began a major 

overhaul of its utility tunnel system during fiscal year 2008.  While various maintenance projects related to the 
tunnels occur routinely each year, this $8.8 million project is part of the $180 million in critical deferred 
maintenance identified by the Regent’s studies.  These tunnel improvements are necessary to maintain the various 
state-owned utility systems routed through more than 16,000 feet of tunnel systems.  The tunnel system is used to 
route steam and condensate piping from the central plant, portions of the campus electrical distribution system, 
communication cabling and other vital utility systems to approximately 50 buildings on the main campus.  
Funding for this project will come from the State’s Infrastructure Maintenance Fund as well as University interest 
income.    

 
• In 2008, KU proposed an expansion of its School of Pharmacy in response to a growing shortage of pharmacists 

in the Kansas health care system.  The expansion will include construction of a new building on the Lawrence 
campus and an additional floor at the School of Medicine-Wichita.   The Phase One Teaching and Administration 
project will provide 110,000 gross square feet of new space, including a model pharmacy, integrated instructional 
labs, library and computer commons, student study space, lecture hall, and teaching labs.  The project will 
accommodate the entire instructional mission, including the relocation of the Pharmacy Practice program and 
faculty, and will provide all the required instructional space for the departments of Pharmaceutical Chemistry, 
Medicinal Chemistry, and Pharmacology and Toxicology in a new location adjacent to the current Simon's 
Bioscience buildings on KU's West Campus.  The project was approved by the 2008 & 2009 legislatures and will 
be financed with approximately $50 million in state bonds and an additional $10 million from private sources.   
The State General fund will pay the annual debt service on the revenue bonds.  Construction at both locations is 
expected to be completed in 2010.   

 
• The Jayhawker Towers complex was built in 1967 as privately owned housing and acquired by the University in 

1981.  The complex consists of four towers, each with approximately 75 apartments and 185 residents.  After forty 
years of use, the buildings have major mechanical needs that must be addressed.  Additionally, the amenities and 
aesthetics are outdated.  The University plans to renovate all four buildings, starting with Tower A.  For both 
financial and occupancy reasons, the renovation will be best accomplished one tower at a time.  The same mix of 
two-and-four-person apartments will be maintained.  In addition to mechanical upgrades, the project will include 
enhancements in lighting, data service, and life-safety systems.  Estimated project costs are $7.8 million dollars 
per tower.  Tower A will be completed August 2009, and construction will begin on Tower D in FY 2010. 

 
• The Haworth Hall project replaces ten air handling units, controls and chilled water piping in the original building, 

the 1971 and 1985 additions and Stewart Wing, and replaces the cooling tower in the original building.  This 
project also replaces exhaust hoods and controls in the original building and additions, and updates the fire alarm 
system.  Total projected cost for this project is $2.6 million and is funded from the State’s Infrastructure 
Maintenance Fund as well as University interest income.   

 
• The Malott Hall project will replace at least four 30-year old air-handling units and their controls.  It will also 

replace approximately 50 exhaust hoods of similar vintage in order to better control chemical fume concentrations 
in classrooms, laboratories, and office spaces.  Where feasible, the projects will incorporate heat recovery 
equipment to reduce energy use.  Total projected cost for this project is $2.6 million and is funded from the State’s 
Infrastructure Maintenance Fund as well as University interest income.   
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• During 2008, Athletics started a major renovation of Allen Fieldhouse that includes a separate basketball practice 
facility, complete renovation of Parrott Athletic Center, and new basketball locker room areas for both the men's 
and women's team.  Also included in the project are a bridge between the parking garage and Allen Fieldhouse, 
and improvements in Anderson Family Strength Center for the Student-Athlete Support Services program.  The 
project is expected to be completed in early FY 2010.  This project is primarily financed by $32.8 million in bonds 
and total project cost is estimated to be $33 million.   

 
• During 2009, the Medical Center began a complete renovation of the 4th floor of the Murphy Administration 

building.  The $1 million project is designed to update the administrative offices of the Surgery Foundation.  The 
majority of the costs will is to be funded by the foundation and is expected to be completed in Spring 2010. 

 
• During 2009, the Medical Center began working on a renovation of the Applegate Energy Center.  The $4 million 

project will replace the current chillers, control panels and other vital parts to make the Energy Center operate 
more efficiently.  The project is being funded from the State’s Infrastructure Maintenance Fund as well as 
University interest income, and is expected to be completed during 2012.  

 
DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
At June 30, 2009, the University had $288.8 million in revenue bond debt outstanding.  In 2009, the University issued new 
debt in the amount of $21.1 million to finance the cost to construct a School of Pharmacy at the Lawrence campus and to 
add an additional floor at the School of Medicine-Wichita (School of Pharmacy Project).  Also, the University issued $5 
million debt to finance the Jayhawker Tower project.  In addition, Athletics issued new debt in the amount of $32.8 to 
finance a major renovation of Allen Fieldhouse and to construct a bridge between the parking garage and Allen Fieldhouse.   
 
At June 30, 2008, the University had $241.9 million in revenue bond debt outstanding.  In 2008, the University issued new 
debt in the amount of $18.2 million to finance the cost to construct, furnish, and equip the expansion of the Kansas Law 
Enforcement Training Center (KLETC).  The University also paid off the remaining revenue bond related to the purchase 
of its continuing education building. 
  
The University paid $22.8 million in principal and interest payments related to all outstanding revenue bonds in 2009. 
 
Moody’s Investor Service currently rates the University “Aa2”.  More detailed information about the University’s revenue 
bonds is available in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements. 
 
 
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK   
 
Similar to the national economy, the State of Kansas economy has slowed down.  As actual revenues fell short of revenue 
estimates prepared by the Consensus Revenue Estimating Group throughout 2009 and the beginning of 2010, the governor 
and state legislature faced significant budget shortfalls.  While support for higher education has been strong in recent years, 
the University’s appropriations were reduced by 12% for fiscal year 2010.  In November 2009, the governor proposed 
further reductions that would reduce Higher Education funding to 2006 levels, the maximum reduction allowed for the 
State to qualify for State Fiscal Stabilization Funds from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) 
without applying for a waiver from the US Department of Education. 
 
Beyond the University’s state appropriation reductions, the financial position of the University continues to be relatively 
strong.  In the Fall 2009, 30,004 students enrolled at KU.  While enrollment was down by 98 students in comparison to Fall 
2008, this very minor decrease was anticipated as Fall 2008 represented a record semester in regards to enrollment.  
Enrollment for the academic 2009-2010 year is expected to be comparable to 2008-2009.  As a result, tuition revenues are 
expected to remain strong.  Over the next few years, enrollment is expected to remain stable or drop slightly due to a 
decline in Kansas high school graduates. 
  
In Fall 2007, the University put into effect its “4-Year Tuition Compact” for all incoming freshmen.  The “4-Year Tuition 
Compact” is a program that sets a fixed tuition rate for four years for all incoming freshman.  The goals of the program are 
to give students and their families the ability to budget for the next four years, and to provide an incentive for students to 

9



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 

 

complete their bachelor degree within four years.  Fiscal year 2010 represents the third year of this program.  Since 
creation the program has received positive feedback from students and their families. 
 
The University has also focused on the growing number of research opportunities that have been created by the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act.  As of November 2009, the KU Center for Research, Inc. has been awarded 49 projects 
with a total award budget of $10.8 million.  The KU Medical Center Research Institute has been awarded 35 projects with 
a total award budget of $9.1 million.  Both entities also have over 176 proposals submitted that are still awaiting final 
decisions by the federal government. 
 
There also has been continued strong state and regional support for life sciences and cancer initiatives that will position the 
University for continued growth.  One of the top priorities of the University continues to be achieving National Institutes of 
Health recognition as a comprehensive cancer center.  A recent example of external support for this initiative was the 
formation of “Cancer Funding Partners” a volunteer council uniting business and civic leaders from the Kansas City and 
Wichita areas to generate support among their peers for the University of Kansas Cancer Center. The formation of this 
council was announced in December 2009.  
 
Finally the University will be experiencing a significant change in leadership in fiscal year 2010.  After 14 years of service, 
Chancellor Robert Hemenway announced his retirement effective June 30, 2009.  In May 2009, Bernadette Gray-Little was 
named the 17th Chancellor of the University of Kansas.  Chancellor Gray-Little’s first official day on campus was August 
15, 2009.  Executive Vice Chancellor/Provost Richard Lariviere left the University as of June 30, 2009, in order to accept 
the President’s position at another public university.  Danny Anderson, Vice Provost of Academic Affairs, was named 
Interim Provost effective July 1, 2009.  Danny is the Interim Executive Vice Chancellor/Provost. 
 
The University is not aware of any additional currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have 
significant effect on the financial position or results of operations during this fiscal year beyond those unknown variations 
having a global effect on virtually all types of business operations. 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 
 
     Restated 
   2009    2008  
ASSETS      
Current assets:      
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 198,907,737  $ 174,727,667 
  Investments  93,798,125 104,733,544 
  Accounts receivable, net  65,217,244 57,521,369 
  Pledges receivable, net  12,465,435 11,075,071 
  Loans to students, net  2,762,216 2,709,276 
  Inventories  7,791,288 6,925,630 
  Prepaid expenses and other assets  4,800,353 4,874,258 
    Total current assets  385,742,398 362,566,815 
    
Non-current assets:    
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents  3,112,238 5,419,791 
  Pledges receivable, net  15,960,315 7,160,798 
  Endowment investments  59,367,268 74,328,453 
  Other investments  19,951,357 7,954,202 
  Loans to students, net  20,682,176 20,349,719 
  Prepaid expenses and other assets  3,889,939 3,412,361 
  Capital assets, net  864,100,069 806,720,866 
    Total non-current assets  987,063,362 925,346,190 
       Total assets  1,372,805,760 1,287,913,005 
    
LIABILITIES    
Current liabilities:    
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses  55,771,382 46,204,810 
  Deferred revenue  47,382,361  46,286,867 
  Deposits held in custody for others  19,626,832 14,358,153 
  Accrued compensated absences – current portion  25,528,922 29,686,557 
  Capital leases payable - current portion  3,134,163 2,684,447 
  Notes payable – current portion  77,288 1,300,100 
  Revenue bonds payable - current portion  18,000,000 11,445,000 
  Other liabilities  155,596 149,907 
    Total current liabilities  169,676,544 152,115,841 
    
Non-current liabilities:    
  Accrued compensated absences  8,604,862 4,105,368 
  Accrued other postemployment benefits  8,848,792 5,179,225 
  Capital leases payable  19,288,744 22,732,022 
  Notes payable  12,500,000 10,065,477 
  Revenue bonds payable  270,800,000 230,480,000 
  Other long-term liabilities  1,129,159 1,211,008 
    Total non-current liabilities  321,171,557 273,773,100 
       Total liabilities 490,848,101 425,888,941 
    
NET ASSETS    
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 577,898,900 558,402,159 
Restricted for:    
  Nonexpendable  57,848,938 64,601,040 
  Expendable:    
    Scholarships, research, instruction and other  23,305,160 25,893,104 
    Loans  24,213,773 23,690,505 
    Capital projects  32,189,924 26,416,974 
    Debt service  21,221,898 8,995,309 
Unrestricted  145,279,066 154,024,973 
      Total net assets $ 881,957,659  $ 862,024,064 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 
 
     Restated 
    2009     2008 
OPERATING REVENUES      
Tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $16,554,620 in 2009 
and  $16,538,470 in 2008)  $ 229,175,773  $ 209,881,766 
Federal grants and contracts  150,452,052 145,636,011 
State and local grants and contracts  29,363,449 29,166,143 
Nongovernmental grants and contracts  34,104,139 31,236,836 
Sales and services of educational departments  56,145,169 47,939,646 
Auxiliary enterprises:    
  Housing  19,749,379 18,173,392 
  Athletics  82,805,587 82,158,985 
  Parking  9,689,301 8,536,017 
  Student unions  34,160,809 33,391,921 
  University health services  8,530,482 8,321,800 
  Other auxiliary enterprises  4,055,050 3,786,284 
Other operating revenues   19,408,133  17,474,787 
      Total operating revenues   677,639,323  635,703,588 

OPERATING EXPENSES    
Instruction  296,734,823 286,874,713 
Research  201,084,728 189,094,116 
Public service  34,616,408 37,626,424 
Academic support  77,640,856 75,791,239 
Student services  27,577,398 26,868,175 
Institutional support  54,922,942 52,022,231 
Operations and maintenance of plant  68,531,408 62,502,290 
Depreciation  53,922,560 51,294,904 
Scholarships and fellowships  23,647,076 23,325,548 
Auxiliary enterprises:    
    Housing  14,980,086 15,233,849 
    Athletics  61,048,759 58,336,920 
    Parking  5,606,038 5,177,335 
    Student unions  31,847,769 31,473,915 
    University health services  7,717,471 7,828,594 
    Other auxiliary enterprises  5,084,232 4,258,587 
Other operating expenses   1,530,716  5,375,781 
      Total operating expenses   966,493,270  933,084,621 

        Operating income (loss) (288,853,947) (297,381,033) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)      
State appropriations    262,687,403    273,054,044 
Gifts  32,813,819 25,419,336 
Investment income   (8,873,863) 10,390,454 
Interest expense  (14,801,006) (12,781,427) 
Federal Grants and Contracts  10,129,610 8,840,852 
Other non-operating revenues (expenses)  (6,457,703) 1,794,645 
    Net non-operating revenues (expenses)   275,498,260  306,717,904 

        Income before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses  (13,355,687) 9,336,871 

Capital appropriations  18,202,837 7,037,835 
Capital grants and gifts (expense)  14,572,149 17,805,213 
Additions to permanent endowments  514,296 558,967 
        Increase (decrease) in net assets  19,933,595 34,738,886 

NET ASSETS    
Net assets - beginning of year  862,024,064 827,285,178 
Net assets - end of year $ 881,957,659  $ 862,024,064 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS   

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 
 
     Restated 
  2009    2008  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
Tuition and fees $ 228,409,863  $ 212,095,054 
Sales and services of educational activities  54,802,492  49,819,401 
Auxiliary enterprises:     
    Housing  4,755,963  2,762,376 
    Athletics  10,952,645  29,116,303 
    Parking  4,261,510  3,294,820 
    Student unions  1,031,255  881,328 
    University health services  842,101  487,286 
    Other auxiliary enterprises  (1,409,925)  (220,178)
Grants and contracts  217,919,459  203,530,097 
Payments to suppliers  (163,366,504)   (169,016,670)
Payments to utilities  (25,490,346)  (24,459,385)
Compensation and benefits  (550,366,191)  (538,090,978)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships  (23,605,112)  (22,660,611)
Loans issued to students and employees  (4,109,524)  (6,244,131)
Collection of loans to students and employees  3,603,958  2,929,703 
Other receipts (payments)  16,928,074  17,228,976 
        Net cash provided (used) by operating activities  (224,840,282)  (238,546,609)
     
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
State appropriations  262,687,403  273,054,044 
Gifts   33,533,068  26,560,816 
Agency transactions  (248,840)  438,544 
Federal education loan receipts  128,708,749   116,369,973 
Federal education loan disbursements  (129,942,810)  (116,330,912)
Non-operating grants and contracts  9,887,351  8,840,852 
Other  (204,340)  101,604 
        Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities  304,420,581  309,034,921 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Proceeds from capital debt  58,848,559  28,254,780 
Capital appropriations  18,202,837  7,037,835 
Purchases of capital assets  (99,779,553)  (84,757,922)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets  68,474  257,479 
Principal paid on capital debt and leases  (15,266,767)  (16,160,807)
Interest paid on capital debt and leases  (14,883,729)  (12,821,404)
Other  (7,015,730)  1,472,604 
        Net cash used by capital financing activities (59,825,909)  (76,717,435)
     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 104,881,188  105,320,386 
Interest on investments  14,099,851  16,267,984 
Purchase of investments  (116,862,912)  (102,800,654)
        Net cash provided by investing activities  2,118,127  18,787,716 
     
Net increase (decrease) in cash   21,872,517  12,558,593 
     
Cash - beginning of the year  180,147,458  167,588,865 
Cash - end of year $ 202,019,975  $ 180,147,458 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008 
(CONTINUED)  
 
     Restated 
  2009    2008 
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)    
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:   
Operating income $ (288,853,947)  $ (297,381,033)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash    
    provided (used) by operating activities:    
  Non-cash revenue   -          
  Depreciation expense  53,922,560 51,294,904 
  Other non-cash expenses  105,730 134,231 
  Changes in assets and liabilities:    
      Accounts receivables, net  (5,268,426) (6,568,071)
      Pledges receivable, net  (10,189,881) 17,255 
      Loans to students, net  (385,397) (1,499,828)
      Inventories  (865,658) (350,247)
      Prepaid expenses and other assets  373,783 190,946 
      Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  21,214,034 6,293,442 
      Deferred revenue  1,095,494 1,062,499 
      Accrued compensated absences  341,859 3,080,068 
      Accrued other postemployment benefits 3,669,567 5,179,225 
        Net cash provided (used) by operating activities: $ (224,840,282)  $ (238,546,609)

   
Non-cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities    
Gifts-In-Kind $ 14,897,437 $ 17,637,757 
Net Change in Unrealized Gains and Losses  15,807,051 2,611,496 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements  
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008   
 

 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, with the exception of GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations 
Are Component Units.  The University has made the decision not to include the Kansas University Endowment 
Association (KUEA) within the University’s financial statements.  The financial statements have not been audited. 
 
In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management is required to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Organization.  The University of Kansas (the “University”) is a comprehensive institution providing undergraduate, 
graduate, and professional education in a variety of academic programs.  The University is a Public Doctoral/Research 
University - Extensive and is accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools.  The University is 
governed by the Kansas Board of Regents and is an agency of the State of Kansas.  As an agency of the State of Kansas, 
the University is included in the audited financial report of the State of Kansas. 
 
The University conducts education, research, public service, and related activities at four campuses:  the campus in 
Lawrence, Kansas, the Edwards Campus in Overland Park, Kansas, and the medical center campuses in Kansas City, 
Kansas and Wichita, Kansas. 
 
For fall 2008, the Lawrence and Edwards’s campuses had an undergraduate enrollment of 20,811 and a graduate/first 
professional enrollment of 6,188.  The Medical Center had an undergraduate enrollment of 521 and a graduate/first 
professional (including medical residents, fellows and trainees) enrollment of 2,582.  Enrollment at all campuses was 
30,102 students. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
these financial statements present the combined financial position and financial activities of the University’s four campuses 
and the following blended component units for which the University is financially accountable:  the University of Kansas 
Center for Research, Inc. (KUCR), Kansas Athletics, Inc. (Athletics), the University of Kansas Memorial Corporation (KU 
Unions), the University of Kansas Medical Center Research Institute (RI), the Student Union Corporation of the University 
of Kansas Medical Center, and Kansas University Health Partners, Inc.   
 
The financial activity and balances of the Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA), the Kansas University 
Alumni Association, Kansas University Physicians, Inc. (KUPI) and the University of Kansas Hospital Authority are not 
included in the financial statements of the University as they are legally separate entities and the University does not 
appoint a voting majority of their governing bodies. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, all significant transactions and balances between campuses and blended component 
units have been eliminated to avoid overstatement of 1) revenues and expenses on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets, and 2) balances on the Statement of Net Assets. 
 
Basis of Accounting.  For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government 
engaged only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have been presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are 
recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  All significant intra-agency 
transactions have been eliminated. 
 
The University has the option to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB.  The University has elected to not apply FASB pronouncements 
issued after the applicable date. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

Cash Equivalents.  For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the University considers all highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  At certain times, some of the University’s 
component units maintain cash balances in excess of FDIC limits.  Management has evaluated the financial stability of 
these financial institutions and feels the risk to the component units is minimal. 
 
Investments.  The University accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.  Changes in unrealized 
gain (loss) on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. 
 
Accounts Receivable.  Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fees charged to students and auxiliary enterprise 
services provided to students, faculty, and staff.  Accounts receivable also include amounts due from the Federal 
government, state and local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures 
made pursuant to the University’s grants and contracts.  Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible 
amounts. 
 
Inventories.  Inventories are carried at cost. 
 
Prepaid Expenses.  Prepaid expenses consist primarily of deferred charges related to revenue bond issuances as well as 
deferred summer school expenses. 
 
Capital Assets.  Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair market value at the date of donation in 
the case of gifts.  For equipment, the University’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost $5,000 or more, 
and an estimated useful life greater than one year.  Renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and land improvements that 
significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized if the related project cost exceeds 
$100,000.  Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense was 
incurred. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 25 years for land 
improvements, 8 years for equipment, and 5 years for vehicles.  Depreciation for buildings and infrastructure is computed 
using a componentized building and infrastructure depreciation study.  Note – The estimated useful lives used by the 
blended component units for equipment and building improvements, ranging from 5 to 15 years, vary slightly from the 
University’s policy.  The financial impact of the variation is considered to be immaterial to the financials statements as a 
whole.   
 
Costs incurred during construction of long-lived assets are recorded as construction in progress and are not depreciated 
until placed in service.  The University capitalized $514,908 and $399,948 in interest during 2009 and 2008, respectively.   
 
Deferred Revenues.  Deferred revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary activities prior 
to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent accounting period.  Deferred revenues also include summer 
school tuition not earned during the current year and amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet 
been earned. 
 
Compensated Absences.  Employee vacation pay is accrued at year-end for financial statement purposes.  The liability 
and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as accrued compensated absences in the Statement of Net Assets, and as an 
expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. 
 
Deposits Held In Custody For Others.  Deposits held in custody for others consist primarily of student organizations’ 
moneys administered by the University. 
 
Noncurrent Liabilities.  Noncurrent liabilities include principal amounts of notes and revenue bonds payable, capital lease 
obligations with contractual maturities greater than one year, and estimated amounts for accrued compensated absences and 
accrued other postemployment benefits that will not be paid within the next fiscal year. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

Net Assets.  The University’s net assets are classified as follows: 
 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt:  This represents the University’s total investment in capital assets, net of 
outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.  To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended 
for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.” 

 
Restricted net assets – nonexpendable:  Restricted nonexpendable net assets consist of endowment and similar type 
funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal 
is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future income, 
which may either be expended or added to principal. 

 
Restricted net assets – expendable:  Restricted expendable net assets include resources for which the University is 
legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties. 

 
Unrestricted net assets:  Unrestricted net assets represent resources derived from student tuition and fees, state 
appropriations, and sales and services of educational departments.  These resources are used for transactions relating to 
the educational and general operations of the University, and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to 
meet current expenses for any purpose.  These resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially 
self-supporting activities that provide services for students, faculty, and staff. 

 
Tax Status.  As a state institution of higher education, the income of the University is generally exempt from federal and 
state income taxes under Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue Code; however, income generated from activities 
unrelated to the University’s exempt purpose is subject to income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 511(a)(2)(B). 
 
Classification of Revenues.  The University has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues 
according to the following criteria: 
 

Operating revenues:  Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such 
as 1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, 2) sales and services of auxiliary 
enterprises, 3) most federal, state, and local grants and contracts, and 4) interest on institutional student loans. 

 
Nonoperating revenues:  Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange 
transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as nonoperating revenues by 
GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental 
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 34, such as state appropriations and 
investment income. 

 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances.  Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are 
reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.  
Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the 
University, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf.  Certain 
governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, state, or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either 
operating or nonoperating revenues in the University’s financial statements.  To the extent that revenues from such 
programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship discount 
and allowance. 
 
Contributions.  Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at estimated fair value at the date each 
promise is received.   
 
Reclassifications.  Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2008 financial statements to conform to the 2009 
financial statement presentation.  These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net assets.  
 
 
 

18



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS 
 
SUMMARY OF CARRYING VALUES 
 
The carrying values of deposits and investments shown below are included in the Statement of Net Assets as follows: 
 

     
 2009   2008 
Carrying value:     
  Deposits $ 192,818,139  $ 177,859,431 
  Investments 182,318,586   189,304,226 
 $ 375,136,725  $ 367,163,657 
     
Included in the following Statement of Net Assets line 
items:     
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 198,907,737  $ 174,727,667 
  Investments 93,798,125   104,733,544 
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents (non-current) 3,112,238   5,419,791 
  Endowment investments (non-current) 59,367,268   74,328,453 
  Other investments (non-current) 19,951,357   7,954,202 
 $ 375,136,725  $ 367,163,657 

 
At June 30, 2009, the University carried deposits as shown below: 
 

Investment Type  Fair Value 
Cash deposits with State Treasury $ 159,950,170
Cash deposits with financial institutions 19,045,236
Certificates of deposit 11,314,360
Money market funds 2,508,373
 $ 192,818,139

 
The deposits reflected above were held by the following entities as of June 30: 
 

    
 2009  2008 
KU Lawrence and Edwards Campuses $ 120,891,969 $ 107,487,380 
Kansas Athletics, Inc. 5,143,142  8,244,759 
KU Center for Research, Inc.*  (470,250)  (1,575,786) 
KU Memorial Corporation 1,997,765  2,144,023 
KU Medical Center 41,307,656  41,299,338 
KU Medical Center Research Institute 22,501,234  18,734,640 
Student Union Corporation of KUMC 1,148,556  1,121,512 
Kansas University Health Partners, Inc. 298,067   403,565 

 $ 192,818,139 $ 177,859,431 
 

* The University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. utilizes an overnight repurchase agreement for its bank 
deposits to maximize investment return.  At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the overnight repurchase agreement 
amounted to $8,018,494 and $7,815,778, respectively, and its carrying value is included in the investments 
above.  The repurchase agreement balance is included in “cash and cash equivalents” on the Statement of 
Net Assets at year-end.  The negative deposit book balance noted above is primarily the result of 
outstanding checks. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

State law requires the University (Lawrence Campus, Edwards Campus, and the Medical Center campuses - in Kansas City 
and Wichita) to deposit the majority of its cash balances with the state treasurer, who holds and invests the funds.  The 
exceptions to this law are any funds maintained in the University’s imprest fund, organizational safekeeping, revenue bond 
project and reserve funds, and any funds held by external entities on behalf of the University.  
 
Cash balances maintained by the state treasurer are pooled and are held in a general checking account and other special 
purpose bank accounts.  The available cash balances beyond immediate need are pooled for short-term investment purposes 
by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and are reported at fair value, based on quoted market prices. 
 
The majority of University deposit balances not maintained by the state treasurer are covered by FDIC or collateralized.  
The University does not have a formal deposit policy regarding custodial credit risk.  However, management has evaluated 
the financial stability of the financial institutions involved and feels the custodial credit risk is minimal. 
  
 
NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS 
 
At June 30, 2009, the University carried investments as shown below: 
 

Investment Type  Fair Value 
US Treasury obligations $ 5,190,924
US Agency obligations 28,774,693
Corporate bonds 2,433,623
Fixed mutual funds 656,893
Domestic stock 3,492,627
Foreign stock 200,556
Preferred stock 277,987
Equity mutual funds 3,841,992
Limited liability companies 534,416
Other 414,246
Repurchase agreements 9,957,744
Guaranteed investment contracts 21,451,628
Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) 1,977,102
External investment pools 
     KUEA Short-term Investment Program 14,955,272
     KUEA Long-term Investment Program 88,158,883
 $ 182,318,586

 
The investments reflected above were held by the following entities as of June 30: 
 

    
 2009  2008 
KU Lawrence and Edwards Campuses $ 62,661,873 $ 74,532,932 
Kansas Athletics, Inc. 61,035,257  60,960,737 
KU Center for Research, Inc. 38,502,835  36,887,505 
KU Memorial Corporation 49,197  62,114 
KU Medical Center 10,630,626  11,805,085 
KU Medical Center Research Institute 9,438,798  5,055,853 
Student Union Corporation of KUMC                   -                    - 
Kansas University Health Partners, Inc.                   -                    - 
 $ 182,318,586 $ 189,304,226 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
State statutes govern the University’s investment policies.  For investments related to the University’s revenue bonds, state 
statutes permit cash balances to be invested as permitted by bond documents and bond covenants.  The Kansas 
Development Finance Authority (KDFA) manages the University’s revenue bond investments.  Allowable investments 
include: 
 

• U.S. Government obligations 
• Obligations of government-sponsored agencies 
• Federal funds, unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits, and banker’s acceptances 
• Deposits – fully insured by FDIC 
• Certain State or municipal debt obligations 
• Certain pre-refunded municipal obligations 
• Commercial paper 
• Investments in money market funds 
• Repurchase agreements 
• Stripped securities 
• Investments in the Municipal Investment Pool Fund 
• Investment agreements 
• Guaranteed investment contracts 

 
State statutes also govern the investment policies of the PMIB.  The primary objectives are to attain safety, liquidity, and 
yield.  Allowable investments for State pooled moneys not held in Kansas financial institutions are as follows: 
 

• Direct obligations of, or obligations that are insured as to principal and interest by, the U.S. Government or any 
direct agency thereof, with maturities up to four years 

• Obligations and securities of United States sponsored enterprises that under federal law may be accepted as 
security for public funds.  Moneys available for investments shall not be invested in mortgage-backed securities of 
such enterprises, which include the Government National Mortgage Association 

• Repurchase agreements with Kansas banks or with primary government securities dealers 
• Interfund loans to various State agencies as mandated by the Kansas Legislature limited to not more than the 

lesser of 10 percent or $80,000,000 of total investments 
• Certain Kansas agency and IMPACT Act projects and bonds 
• Linked deposit loans for agricultural production not to exceed $55,000,000 
• High grade commercial paper 

 
The Finance Committee of the Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA) Board of Trustees oversees 
investments in KUEA’s investment programs.  The Finance Committee develops guidelines and procedures for investment 
programs, in accordance with the policies established by the Executive Committee.   
 
The KUEA Short-term Investment Program is designed for short-term, highly liquid investing needs.  KUEA invests the 
idle cash balances in individual fund accounts by pooling them into a short-term investment program to produce a net 
investment yield.  The total investment yield, less distributions of earnings to certain accounts, is retained by KUEA and is 
allocated to the unrestricted net asset classification to defray administrative costs. 
 
The KUEA Long-term Investment Program is designed for investing endowed funds and other types of funds with similar 
long-term objectives.  These funds are collectively invested in a diversified long-term portfolio that is professionally 
managed by firms chosen by KUEA for their expertise in specialized portfolio management.  Funds participating in the 
long-term investment portfolio receive regular distributions that are available for immediate spending in accordance with 
KUEA’s established spending policy. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

The Executive Committee as well as the Finance and Audit Committee of KUCR oversee KUCR investments.  Per KUCR 
investment policy, investments are limited to money market funds, U.S. Treasury obligations (Bills, Notes, Bonds), U.S. 
Government Agency obligations, corporate obligations rated ‘A-‘ or better, and stocks sold on major international 
exchanges such as NYSE, ASE, and NASDAQ.  Asset allocation targets are reviewed quarterly by the Finance and Audit 
Committee. 
 
Athletics investment policy limits investments to money market accounts, certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury obligations 
(Bills, Notes, Bonds), and investments with KUEA. 
 
KU Unions does not have a formal investment policy.  Operational reserves are invested in short-term certificates of 
deposit or government securities as directed by the Executive Board.   
 
The Board of Directors and Finance Committee of KUMC Research Institute (RI) oversee the RI’s investment policy.   Per 
RI investment policy, investments are actively managed by either individual investment management firms with direct 
ownership of the financial investments held by the RI, or within a mutual fund.  Financial advisors are selected by the 
Finance Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.  Approved financial advisors make quarterly presentations to 
the Finance Committee and overall performance is reviewed annually.  RI investment policy also sets investment quality 
standards for specific investments (e.g. U.S. Treasury or Agency obligations, corporate obligations rated ‘A-/A3’ or better, 
and no more than 10% of portfolio in international equities or emerging markets).  

 
 

INTEREST RATE RISK 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  The 
University does not have a formal investment policy that leverages investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates.  The University has historically held its fixed income 
securities until maturity, thus limiting the University’s interest rate risk exposure. 
 
For revenue bond investments managed by KDFA, due to the tax-exempt status of the bonds, it is generally the practice of 
KDFA and University management to match reserve fund interest rates to the arbitrage yield on the bonds, and the term of 
the investments to the maturity of the bonds.  For invested loan funds, KDFA generally invests to maximize the interest 
rate and sets a term of investment based on estimated expenditures, which is generally 3 – 5 years. 
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The University had the following investments and maturities at June 30, 2009: 
 

   Investment Maturities (in years) 
Investment Type Fair Value  Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10 
Investments with Maturity Date:       
US Treasury obligations $    5,190,924  $   1,142,267 $  3,515,377 $    533,280      $          - 
US Agency obligations 28,774,693  3,339,402 18,073,818 3,815,256 3,546,217 
Corporate bonds 2,433,623  404,634 1,030,294 998,695           - 
Repurchase agreements 9,957,744  8,018,494 1,117,000 - 822,250 
Guaranteed investment contracts 21,451,628  5,416,623 445,224 1,599,418 13,990,363 
Pooled Money Investment Board 1,977,102            - 317,714           - 1,659,388 
External investment pools       
   KUEA Short-term investment program 14,955,272  14,955,272           -           -           - 
 $  84,740,986  $ 33,276,692 $  24,499,427 $  6,946,649 $  20,018,218 
Investments not subject to maturity dates:       
Fixed mutual funds $       656,893      
Domestic stock 3,492,627      
Foreign stock 200,556      
Preferred stock 277,987      
Equity mutual funds 3,841,992      
Limited liability companies 534,416      
Other 414,246      
External investment pools       
   KUEA Long-term investment program** 88,158,883      
 97,577,600      
Total $182,318,586      

 
** KUEA’s Long-term investment program is invested in approximately 80% equities (no maturity date).   

 
 
CREDIT RISK 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The University 
holds investments that may have credit risk since the underlying securities may include securities other than those that take 
the form of U.S. Treasuries or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government.  Certain investments have an 
underlying collateral agreement.   
 
As of June 30, 2009, the University held the following investments as rated by Standard and Poor’s and/or Moody’s: 
 

Credit Quality Rating  Fair Value  % of Total 
AAA/Govt $ 52,850,542  29.0% 
AAA 252,322  0.1% 
AA 343,924  0.2% 
A 3,387,680  1.9% 
BBB 240,887  0.1% 
BB 12,071  0.0% 
B 1,750,869  1.0% 
Not Rated 123,480,291  67.7% 

 $ 182,318,586  100.00% 
 
The investments included in the “Not Rated” category include investments in KUEA’s Short-term and Long-term 
Investment Programs (external investment pools are not required to be rated), the State’s Pooled Money Investment Board 
(PMIB), as well as the University’s bond related guaranteed investment contracts and repurchase agreements managed by 
KDFA.  
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CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter party, the University will 
not be able to recover the value of the investments that are in the possession of an outside party.  Custodial credit risk 
should not be confused with market risk, which is the risk that the market value of a security may decline.  The 
University’s investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured and unregistered and 
held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the University’s name.   
 
The investment policies of the University and its component units do not formally address custodial credit risk.  
Nonetheless, the University’s custodial credit risk is estimated to be minimal due to several factors.  First, investments in 
external investment pools and in open-end mutual funds are not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is 
not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.  As noted above, the majority of the University’s 
investments are invested within KUEA’s Short-term and Long-term Investment Programs.  Second, management has 
evaluated the stability of the financial institutions through which other investments are made.  Generally the financial 
institutions are members of the Depository Trust Company (DTC), the world’s largest depository and a member of the 
Federal Reserve System.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for securities deposited with the DTC by DTC 
participants.  DTC facilitates settlement of transactions through electronic book-entry transfers and pledges between the 
DTC participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Additionally the 
financial institutions hold the assets in custody or trust so that they would not be available to the institution’s creditors 
because they are excluded from the assets of the custodian.   
 
The RI has made minimal investments directly in limited partnerships, which would have some custodial risk.  The balance 
of these investments as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 was $534,416 and $535,703, respectively.  
 
 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer 
that exceeds 5 percent or more of its total investments.  Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from 
this requirement.  The University does not have a formal policy regarding the concentration of credit risk.  However, 
management has evaluated the financial stability of the financial institutions involved and feels the credit risk is minimal. 
 
Of the University of Kansas’ total investments of $182,318,586 and $189,304,226 as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively; the University of Kansas Endowment Association administers $103,114,155 and $126,300,501 respectively.  
The Kansas Development Finance Authority invests $6,483,055 and $6,498,618 million of the total as of June 30, 2009 
and 2008, respectively.  These monies represent bond proceeds and reserve requirements.   
 
The University investments also include $11,795,449 and $14,252,960 of investments administered by outside trustees as 
of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  These investments consist of three accounts:  1) the Gertrude S. Pearson Trust, 2) 
the Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins and Miller Scholarship Halls, and 3) the Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for 
Watkins Hospital. 
 

The Gertrude S. Pearson Trust had a reported market value of $7,448,477 at June 30, 2009 and $8,907,181 
at June 30, 2008.  The trustee is Bank of America. 
 
The Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins and Miller Scholarship Halls had a reported market value of    
$2,825,028 at June 30, 2009 and $3,427,830 at June 30, 2008.  The trustee is Bank of America. 
 
The Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins Hospital had a reported market value of $1,521,944 at June 
30, 2009 and $1,917,949 at June 30, 2008.  The trustee is Bank of America. 

 
The remaining investments consist of $60,925,927 and $42,252,147 invested in a combination of short-term and long-term 
investments, primarily US Agency obligations 
. 
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NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable net of estimated uncollectible amounts, consisted of the following at June 30: 
                        

   Restated 
 2009  2008 
Tuition and Fees $ 8,103,386   $ 6,593,027 
Auxiliary  10,737,332   8,574,402 
Grants and Contracts  32,591,799   28,709,905 
Other  13,784,727   13,644,035 
 $ 65,217,244  $ 57,521,369 

 
 
NOTE 5 – PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Pledges receivable consist of the following unconditional promises to give: 

  2009   2008 
Due in less than one year $ 16,810,701 $ 13,100,071 
Due in one to five years 14,385,633 9,951,900 
Due in more than five years 3,295,000 225,000 
 34,491,334 23,276,971 
Less  
  Unamortized discount 1,790,584 1,016,102 

Allowance for uncollectible amounts 4,275,000 4,025,000 
 $ 28,425,750 $ 18,235,869 

 
Pledges receivable are recorded on the accompanying statements of financial position as follows: 

  2009   2008 
Pledges receivable - current $ 12,465,435 $ 11,075,071 
Pledges receivable - non-current 15,960,315 7,160,798 
 $ 28,425,750 $ 18,235,869 

 
 
NOTE 6 – INVENTORIES 
 
Inventories consisted of the following at June 30: 
 

 2009 2008 
Bookstore $ 3,367,552 $ 2,708,361 
Food Service 221,954 216,985 
Physical Plant 2,321,922 2,060,472 
Professional and Scientific Supplies 872,789 844,148 
Office Supplies 356,712 349,588 
Other 650,359 746,076 
 $ 7,791,288 $ 6,925,630 

 
 
NOTE 7 – LOANS TO STUDENTS 
 
Student loans made through the Federal Perkins Loan Program comprise substantially all of the loans to students at June 
30, 2009 and 2008.  The Program provides for cancellation of a loan at rates of 10% to 30% per year up to a maximum of 
100% if the participant complies with certain provisions.  The federal government reimburses the University for amounts 
cancelled under these provisions. 
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As the University determines that loans are uncolIectible and not eligible for reimbursement by the federal government, the 
loans are written off and assigned to the U.S. Department of Education.  The University has provided an allowance for 
uncollectible loans, which, in management’s opinion, is sufficient to absorb loans that will ultimately be written off.  At 
June 30, 2009 and 2008, the allowance for uncollectible loans was estimated to be $498,461 and $503,050, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows: 
 
The following roll forward of capital assets is for the Lawrence, Edwards, and Medical Center Campuses only.   
 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Retirements  Ending Balance 

          
Land $ 14,185,597  $ 93,255  $    -  $ 14,278,852 
Land improvements  4,102,956  -     -   4,102,956 
Works of Art  16,246,431  741,474     -   16,987,905 
Infrastructure  51,484,968  11,639,964     -   63,124,932 
Buildings   964,206,979  96,473,196     -   1,060,680,175 
Equipment  140,479,302  14,396,349  6,565,539   148,310,112 
Vehicles  16,052,241  730,026  549,591   16,232,676 
     Total  1,206,758,474  124,074,264  7,115,130   1,323,717,608 
          

Less accumulated          
  depreciation:          
Infrastructure  18,694,590  2,267,211     -   20,961,801 
Buildings  390,389,342  31,177,152  311,727   421,254,767 
Equipment  91,161,365  12,723,214  6,008,419   97,876,160 
Vehicles  10,955,848  1,452,620  558,042   11,850,426 
     Total accumulated          
       depreciation  511,201,145  47,620,197  6,878,188   551,943,154 
          
Capital assets, net $ 695,557,329  $ 76,454,067  $ 236,942    
          
Kansas Athletics Inc.       39,884,480 
KU Center for Research, Inc.       18,288,179 
KU Memorial Corporation       6,481,199 
KU Medical Center Research Institute       1,355,212 
Construction In Progress (Lawrence, Edwards, and Medical Center Campuses)   26,316,545 
        $ 864,100,069 

 
 
The University elected not to capitalize its library book collections.  These collections adhere to the University’s policy to 
(a) maintain them for public exhibition, education, or research; (b) protect, keep encumbered, care for, and preserve them; 
and (c) require proceeds from their sale to be used to acquire other collection items.  Generally accepted accounting 
principles permit collections maintained in this manner to be charged to operations at the time of purchase rather than be 
capitalized. 
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NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Non-current liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows: 
 

 Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance Current Portion
Accrued compensated absences  $ 33,791,925  $ 31,437,305  $ 31,095,446  $ 34,133,784  $ 25,528,922 
Accrued other postemployment benefits  5,179,225 5,444,461 1,774,894  8,848,792      - 
Capital leases payable  25,416,469 621,013 3,614,575  22,422,907 3,134,163 
Notes payable  11,365,577 2,511,811 1,300,100  12,577,288 77,288 
Revenue bonds payable  241,925,000 58,890,000 12,015,000  288,800,000 18,000,000 
Other long-term liabilities  1,360,915 66,848 143,008  1,284,755 155,596 

Total non-current liabilities $ 319,039,111 $ 98,971,438 $ 49,943,023 $ 368,067,526 $ 46,895,969 
 
 
NOTE 10 - REVENUE BONDS OUTSTANDING 
 
Revenue bonds payable consist of the following: 
 

  Principal Outstanding
  at 6/30/09 
Kansas Development Finance Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds – Series C, 1997 (The Board   
of Regents – University of Kansas Regents Center Refunding Project) $3,255,000.  Due in    
annual installments of  $170,000 to $245,000.  Issued 3/15/97 with a final maturity on 12/1/10.     
Interest ranging from 4.70% to 5.30% payable semi-annually.  At the time of issuance a rating was   
not applied for with respect to these bonds, and no insurance was purchased.  The underlying   
revenue stream was assigned an A1 post sale rating by Moody’s Investor Service.  $  550,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series D, 1998 (The Board of Regents -   
University of Kansas Housing System Renovation Project - Lewis Hall) $4,290,000.   Due in   
annual installments of $100,000 to $690,000.  Issued 3/1/98 with a final maturity on 5/1/23.     
Interest ranging from 3.70% to 5.05% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa3 was assigned by   
Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance   
policy issued by MBIA Insurance Corporation.  3,100,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series C, 1999 (The Board of Regents    
– University of Kansas Child Care Facility Construction Project) $3,085,000.   Due in annual   
installments of $100,000 to $470,000.  Issued 6/1/99 with a final maturity on 5/1/19.  Interest    
ranging from 4.00% to 5.10% payable semi-annually.  A rating of A1 was assigned by Moody’s   
Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance policy    
issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  2,045,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series D, 1999 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas - Parking Garage #2 Construction Project) $11,170,000.  Due in annual   
installments of  $560,000 to $2,085,000.  Issued 5/1/99 with final maturity on 4/1/14.  Interest   
ranging from 4.00% to 4.75% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa3 was assigned by Moody’s   
Investor Service, and no insurance was purchased.     4,310,000 
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  Principal Outstanding 
  at 6/30/09 

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2001 T-2 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Student Union Renovation and Expansion Project) $4,435,000.  Due in   
annual installments of $300,000 to $540,000.  Issued 8/1/01 with final maturity on 4/1/13.     
Interest ranging from 3.10% to 4.75% payable semi-annually.  A rating of AAA was assigned by   
Standard & Poor’s based upon an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  The    
underlying revenue stream was assigned an Aa3 post sale rating by Moody’s Investor Service.  $  1,775,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2002 A-1 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Housing System Renovation Project - Ellsworth Hall) $11,230,000.    
Due in annual installments of $45,000 to $1,280,000.  Issued 4/1/02 with final maturity on 5/1/27.     
Interest ranging from 3.50% to 5.00% payable semi-annually.  A rating of AAA was assigned by   
Standard & Poor’s based upon an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  The   
underlying revenue stream was assigned an Aa3 post sale rating by Moody’s Investor Service.  9,740,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2002 A-2 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Student Recreation and Fitness Center) $15,330,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $735,000 to $1,350,000.  Issued 4/1/02 with final maturity on 5/1/17.  Interest   
ranging from 3.50% to 5.00% payable semi-annually.  A rating of AAA was assigned by    
Standard & Poor’s based upon an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  The   
underlying revenue stream was assigned an Aa3 post sale rating  by Moody’s Investor Service.  9,280,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2002 K (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Edwards Campus Project) $5,120,000.  Due in annual installments of   
$65,000 to $540,000.  Issued 11/1/02 with a final maturity on 12/1/22.  The first principal payment    
is due 12/1/10.  Interest ranging from 4.3%to 5.0% payable semi-annually.  A rating of A was    
assigned by Moody’s Investor Service, and no insurance was purchased.  Moody’s Investor Service    
upgraded the bonds rating to A1 as of 7/23/04.  5,120,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2003 C (The Board of Regents   
– Research and Development Facilities Projects) $4,965,000.  Due in annual installments of   
$450,000 to $1,890,000.  Issued 2/1/03 with a final maturity on 10/1/10.  Interest ranging from   
3.3% to 5.0% payable semi-annually.  A rating of AAA was assigned by Standard & Poor’s   
based upon an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  1,125,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2005E-1 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Housing System 1996E Templin Hall Refunding Project) $3,065,000.     
Due in annual installments of $155,000 to $270,000.  Issued 5/1/05 with a final maturity on   
5/1/21.  Interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa3 was assigned   
by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance   
policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.    2,585,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2005E-1 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Housing System Hashinger Hall Renovation) $12,965,000.  Due in   
annual installments of $125,000 to $2,015,000.  Issued 5/1/05 with a final maturity on 5/1/30.    
Interest ranging from 3.0% to 4.5% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa3 was assigned by   
Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance   
policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  12,380,000 
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  Principal Outstanding 
  at 6/30/09 
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2006B (Kansas Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Parking Facilities Project - Park & Ride) $9,790,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $140,000 to $1,450,000.  Issued 4/1/06 with a final maturity on 4/1/21.     
Interest ranging from 3.5% to 4.13% payable semi-annually.   A rating of Aa3 was assigned by    
by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance   
policy issued by XL Capital Assurance Inc.  $  9,650,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2007E (Kansas Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Recreation and Fitness Center Expansion Project) $6,275,000.  Due in   
annual installments of $200,000 to $450,000.  Issued 5/1/07 with final maturity on 5/1/27.     
 Interest ranging from 3.75% to 4.30% payable semi-annually.  A rating of AAA was assigned   
by Standard & Poor’s based upon an insurance policy issued by XL Capital Assurance.  5,855,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2007M (Kansas Board of Regents   
- University of Kansas – Law Enforcement Training Center) $18,220,000.  Due in annual    
installments of $670,000 to $1,350,000.  Issued 12/6/07 with final maturity on 6/1/27.     
Interest ranging from 3.5 % to 4.6% payable semi-annually.  A rating of A1 was assigned by   
Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance   
policy issued by Assured Guaranty Corporation.  17,550,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2008L (Kansas Board of Regents   
- University of Kansas – School of Pharmacy Project) $16,430,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $560,000 to $1,245,000.  Issued  11/1/08 with final maturity on 11/1/28.  The first   
principal payment is due 11/1/09.  Interest ranging from 2.0 % to 5.25% payable semi-annually.  A   
rating of Aaa was assigned by Moody’s Investor Service based upon an insurance policy issued by   
Financial Security Assurance, Inc.  21,070,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority BAN 2008-4   (The Board of Regents – University of   
of Kansas Housing System Project) $5,000,000.   Issued 12/10/08 with final maturity on 12/1/09.   
The interest rate is 1.98%.  5,000,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 1999 B (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Medical Center for Health in Aging) $2,920,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $90,000 to $440,000.  Issued 4/1/99 with final maturity on 4/1/19.  Interest   
ranging from 3.60% to 5.00% payable semi-annually.  The bonds were rated at A- by Standard &   
Poor’s at the time of issuance. The rating was upgraded to AAA with the purchase of insurance.  1,920,000   
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2001 T-1 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Medical Center Research Support Facility) $5,860,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $180,000 to $880,000.  Issued 4/1/01 with final maturity on 4/1/21.  Interest   
ranging from 3.10% to 5.00% payable semi-annually.  The bonds were rated at A- by Standard &   
Poor’s at the time of issuance. The rating was upgraded to AAA with the purchase of insurance.  4,370,000 
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  Principal Outstanding 
  at 6/30/09 
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2003 C (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Medical Center Scientific Research and Development Facilities   
Projects) $36,100,000.  Due in annual installments ranging from $3,220,000 to $5,430,000.  Issued   
2/1/03 with a final maturity on 4/1/21.  The first principal payment is due 10/1/16.  Interest ranging    
from 2.13% to 5.01% payable semi-annually.  The bonds were rated at AA by Standard & Poor’s at    
the time of issuance.   A rating of AAA was assigned by Standard & Poor’s based upon an    
insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  $  36,100,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2003 J-1 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Medical Center Energy Conservation Project) $13,080,000.  Due in    
annual installments ranging from $350,000 to $1,060,000.   Issued 8/3/03 with a final maturity   
of 8/1/24.  Interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.75% payable semi-annually.  The bonds were rated   
at AA by Standard & Poor’s and Aa2 by Moody’s at the time of issuance. The rating was   
upgraded to AAA with the purchase of insurance.  11,085,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2005D (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Medical Center Scientific Research and Development Facilities   
Projects) $27,130,000.  Due in annual installments ranging from $1,170,000 to $3,935,000.  Issued   
4/1/05 with a final maturity on 10/1/15.  Interest ranging from 3.90% to 4.80% payable semi-     
annually.  The bonds were rated at AA by Standard & Poor’s at the time of issuance. The rating was   
upgraded to AAA with the purchase of insurance.   17,805,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2005E-2 (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Medical Center Parking Garage #3) $3,330,000.  Due in annual   
installments ranging from $120,000 to $225,000.  Issued 5/1/05 with a final maturity on 5/1/25.     
Interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% payable semi-annually.  The underlying revenue stream   
was assigned an A1 rating by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with   
the addition of an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.  2,955,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2004K (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Athletic Corporation – Restructuring Project) $17,830,000.  Due in   
annual installments of $660,000 to $1,355,000.  Issued 11/16/04 with final maturity on 6/1/23.     
Interest ranging from 3.3% to 4.5% payable semi-annually.  A rating of A was assigned by   
Standard & Poor’s.   14,315,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2008C (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Athletic Corporation Project) $32,820,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $360,000 to $9,035,000.  Issued 7/1/08 with final maturity on 6/1/33.     
Interest ranging from  3.0 % to  5.0 % payable semi-annually.  A rating of A1 was assigned by   
Moody’s Investor Service.  32,250,000 
   
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2005B (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. Project (MRB)) $45,625,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $1,565,000 to $3,610,000.  Issued 2/1/05 with a final maturity on 2/1/25.     
Interest ranging from 3.6% to 5.3% payable semi-annually.  A rating of A1 was assigned by   
Moody’s.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the purchase of a surety bond issued by MBIA   
Insurance Corporation.  40,750,000 
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  Principal Outstanding 
  at 6/30/09 
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2006G (The Board of Regents   
– University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. Project (SBCIII)) $17,085,000.  Due in annual   
installments of $470,000 to $4,615,000.  Issued 10/1/06 with final maturity on 2/1/26.  Interest   
ranging from 4.00% to 5.04% payable semi-annually.  A rating of A was assigned by Standard &   
Poor’s and a rating of A1 was assigned by Moody’s Investor Services.  16,115,000 
   

Total  $  288,800,000 
 
NOTE 11 - REVENUE BONDS MATURITY SCHEDULE 
Maturities of principal and interest requirements on revenue bonds payable are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30:  Principal  Interest  Total 
2010  $ 18,000,000 $ 15,075,953 $ 33,075,953 
2011  13,535,000 14,322,173 27,857,173 
2012  12,515,000 13,668,257 26,183,257 
2013  13,155,000 13,014,875 26,169,875 
2014  30,720,000 21,966,275 52,686,275 

2015-2019  83,105,000 44,646,730 127,751,730 
2020-2024  61,800,000 24,764,096 86,564,096 
2025-2029  42,190,000 11,076,651 53,266,651 
2030-2033  13,780,000 1,687,850 15,467,850 

  $ 288,800,000 $ 160,222,860 $ 449,022,860 
 
The University defeased a portion of 1999 D bond series through advance refunding during fiscal year 2006.  Accordingly, 
the series are not reflected in the accompanying statements.  The amount of bonds that have been defeased as of June 30, 
2009 consists of the following:  
 

 
Series 

 Outstanding at  
June 30, 2009 

1999 D  1,060,000 
 $ 1,060,000 

 
 
NOTE 12 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
The University of Kansas is obligated for the purchase of certain equipment funded through the issuance of blanket 
financing agreements in the amount of $22,422,907 and $25,416,469 as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.    
Payments to liquidate these obligations are scheduled as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30: Total 
2010 $ 3,134,163
2011 2,562,364
2012 2,558,502
2013 2,157,100
2014 1,194,021

2015 and thereafter 10,816,757

 $ 22,422,907
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Included in this balance is the $18,699,700 Master Lease Purchase agreement between the University and the State for the 
University’s Energy Performance Contract.  The University’s Energy Performance Contract consists of approximately 100 
energy savings measures that were completed in fiscal year 2004 and were expected to result in annual utility and 
maintenance savings of $1,700,000.  The projects were funded through a Master Lease Purchase Agreement between the 
State of Kansas and Citibank, N.A.  The University is responsible for repaying the State for the 20-year term of the lease.  
The remaining principal balance of the master lease agreement as of June 30, 2009 is $15,117,881. 
 
NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
University employees participate in two separate retirement programs.  Lawrence Campus University Support Staff and 
Medical Center Classified Staff employees participate in the "Kansas Public Employees Retirement System" (KPERS).  
This defined benefit program is funded through contributions by the University and the individual employees.  The 
University contributed $4,298,416 and $3,814,069 during fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively, and individual 
employees contributed $2,465,631 and $2,355,998.  Unclassified employees participate in the "Board of Regents 
Retirement Program".  This defined contribution program is funded through contributions by the University and the 
individual employees.  The University contributed $28,287,652 and $27,107,977 during fiscal years 2009 and 2008, 
respectively, and individual employees contributed $18,410,220 and $17,425,419.   
 
Employees of Kansas Athletics, Inc., the University of Kansas Memorial Corporation, and the University of Kansas 
Medical Center Research Institute, participate in defined contribution programs similar to the “Board of Regents 
Retirement Program”.  The Corporations contributed $1,636,945 and $1,498,158 to their individual plans during fiscal 
years 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 14 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
As a component unit of the State of Kansas, the University participates in the State’s health insurance benefit plan.  Kansas 
statute provides that postemployment healthcare benefits be extended to retired employees who have met age and/or 
service eligibility requirements. The health insurance benefit generally provides the same coverage for retirees and their 
dependents as for active employees and their dependents.  The health insurance benefit plan is a single employer defined 
benefit plan administered by Kansas Health Policy Authority.  The benefit is available for selection at retirement and is 
extended to retirees and their dependents for life.  Non-Medicare participants are subsidized by the University, thus 
resulting in a liability to the University. At a State level, the accounting for the health insurance for retirees is included in 
the State’s Self-Insurance Health fund, with the subsidy provided from the Self-Insurance Health fund.   
 
 
FUNDING POLICY 
 
The University provides health insurance benefits to retirees and their dependents in accordance with Kansas law (K.S.A. 
75-6511).  Kansas statute, which may be amended by the state legislature, established that participating retirees contribute 
to the employee group health fund benefits plan, including administrative costs.   
 
The University appropriates funds annually for the costs associated with this retirement benefit and provides funding for 
the expenditure on a pay-as-you-go basis.    
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ANNUAL OPEB COST AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION 
 
The University’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities over a period of not to exceed thirty years. The following table presents the components of the University’s 
annual OPEB cost for the year, the contribution to the plan, and changes in the University’s net OPEB obligation. 
 
  

Annual required contribution-amortized liability $ 1,397,398 

Interest on amortized liability          53,799 

Normal cost (with interest)      2,302,152 

   Annual OPEB cost (expense)      3,753,349 

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation        199,400 

Adjustment to the ARC      (283,182) 

Contributions made              - 

     Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,669,567 

  

Net OPEB obligation July 1, 2008    5,179,225 

Net OPEB obligation June 30, 2009 $ 8,848,792 
 
 
Schedule of Employer Contributions (for fiscal year ended) 
 

         
  Annual  Net    End of Year 

Fiscal  OPEB  Employer  Percentage  Net OPEB 
Year  Cost  Contributions  Contributed  Obligation 

         
2008  $5,179,225      $       -          0%  $5,179,225 
2009  $8,848,792      $       -          0%  $8,848,792 

 
 

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS 
 
As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $28,843,695. 
The University’s policy is to fund the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) of $28,843,695. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $497,694,969, 
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 6%. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation includes, for example, assumptions about future 
employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
annual required contributions of employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with the past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress will present in time, multi-
year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 

33



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008    
 

 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
 

    Actuarial         UAAL as a 
  Actuarial  Accrued        Percent of 

Actuarial   Value of  Liability   Unfunded   Funded  Covered  Covered 
Valuation  Assets   (AAL)  AAL  Ratio  Payroll  Payroll 

Date  (a)  (b)  (b-a)  (a/b)  ( c)  ((b-a)/c) 
             

6/30/2008  $       -  $41,265,757  $41,265,757  0%  $471,981,447  9% 
6/30/2009  $       -  $28,843,695  $28,843,695  0%  $497,694,969  6% 

 
 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
Projections of benefits for reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided 
at the time of valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit cost between the employer and plan members to that 
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
 
In the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was applied. The actuarial assumptions included a 
3.85 percent investment rate of return, which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on the State’s 
pooled funds and investments. The valuation assumed annual healthcare cost trend rates of 5.5 to 10 percent in the first ten 
years and an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent after ten years. The valuation followed generally accepted actuarial methods and 
included tests as considered necessary to assure the accuracy of the results.  The UAAL is being amortized over a 30-year 
open period in level dollar amounts. 
 
 
NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the University had outstanding commitments under construction contracts totaling $85,333,864             
and $62,446,424, respectively. 
 
The University is a defendant in several lawsuits.  However, University officials are of the opinion, based on advice of in-
house legal counsel, that the ultimate outcome of all litigation will not have a material effect on the future operations or 
financial position of the University. 
 
All university buildings are insured with a $500,000 deductible and a maximum annual liability of $500,000,000 per 
occurrence. Named equipment is covered up to the declared value with a $5,000 deductible.  Most building contents and 
State-owned automobiles are not insured against property damages or bodily injury.  The University is not aware of any 
significant outstanding claims as of June 30, 2009. 
 
In the normal course of operations, the University receives grants and other forms of reimbursement from various Federal 
and State agencies.  These activities are subject to audit by agents of the funding authority, the purpose of which is to 
ensure compliance with conditions precedent to providing of such funds.  University officials believe that the liability, if 
any, for any reimbursement that may arise as the result of audits, would not be material. 
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NOTE 16 – NATURAL CLASSIFICATIONS WITH FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS 
 
The University’s operating expenses by functional and natural classification for 2009 are as follows: 
 

Natural Classification 

Functional Classification  
Compensation 

& Benefits 

Scholarships 
& 

Fellowships Utilities 
Supplies & 

Other Services  Depreciation Total 
         
Instruction $ 279,041,060 $       - $ 151,879 $ 17,541,884 $    - $ 296,734,823 
Research  128,060,870       - 8,543 73,015,315     - 201,084,728 
Public service  20,943,867       - 3,253 13,669,288     - 34,616,408 
Academic support  59,048,573       - 2,789 18,589,494     - 77,640,856 
Student services  19,302,544       - 806,426 7,468,428     - 27,577,398 
Institutional support  45,952,437       - 93 8,970,412     - 54,922,942 
Operations and maintenance of plant  35,297,238       - 24,431,810 8,802,360     - 68,531,408 
Depreciation        -       -    -       -  53,922,560 53,922 ,560 
Scholarships and fellowships        - 23,647,076    -       -     - 23,647,076 
Auxiliary enterprises:    -     
    Housing  8,208,753       - 2,756,217 4,015,116     - 14,980,086 
    Athletics  26,603,450 8,006,843 620,977 25,817,489     - 61,048,759 
    Parking  1,960,276       - 267,921 3,377,841     - 5,606,038 
    Student unions  12,206,259       - 833,278 18,808,232     - 31,847,769 
    University health services  5,247,303       - - 2,470,168     - 7,717,471 
    Other auxiliary enterprises  3,827,706       -    582 1,255,944     - 5,084,232 
Other   2,405,171       -    54 (874,509)     - 1,530,716 

 $ 648,105,507 $ 31,653,919 $ 29,883,822 $ 202,927,462 $ 53,922,560 $ 966,493,270 
 
 
NOTE 17 – RECLASSIFICATION OF PELL GRANTS 
 
The June 30, 2007 edition of GASB’s Comprehensive Implementation Guide instructed that “Because of public 
institutions’ administrative involvement with Pell grant requirements and because Pell grants are non-exchange 
transactions, public institutions should record Pell grant receipts as non-operating revenues in their financial statements and 
any amounts applied to student receivable accounts should be recorded as scholarship discounts or allowances”.  Therefore 
the June 30, 2009 and 2008 Statement of Revenues, Expense, and Changes in Net Assets reflect the Pell grant 
reclassification from operating to non-operating revenues.   
 
 
NOTE 18 – RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
 
The previously issued statement of activities of the Kansas Athletics Corporation (Athletics) as of June 30, 2008 did not 
account for gains and losses on investments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. As a result, unrestricted net assets increased $12,966,274, temporarily restricted net assets decreased 
$1,130,224 and permanently restricted net assets decreased $11,836,050 as of July 1, 2007. During the year ended June 30, 
2008, unrestricted net assets increased $10,404,199, temporarily restricted net assets decreased $676,786 and permanently 
restricted net assets decreased $9,727,413 relating to these errors.  
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In addition, the deferred compensation liability and expense as well as the multimedia revenue and accounts receivable 
balance were calculated incorrectly. During the year ended June 30, 2009, it was determined that the prior accounting for 
gains and losses on investments, deferred compensation liability and expense, and multimedia revenue and accounts 
receivable was erroneous. Accordingly, Athletics has restated its previously issued 2008 financial statements to properly 
reflect the classification of investment gains, losses, deferred compensation liability and related expense, and multimedia 
revenue and related accounts receivable. 
 
Athletics has restated its previously issued statement of financial position as of June 30, 2008 and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the year then ended for the misstatements discussed above. There was no effect on total net 
assets as of July 1, 2007; however, as a result of these misstatements, net asset classifications were restated as of July 1, 
2007 as described above. 
 
 
The following is a summary of the restatements for the year ended June 30, 2008: 
 

Adjustment of previously reported deferred compensation expense  
     Sports activities expense $    450,880 
     General and administrative expense 485,893 
     Training room expense 14,189 
          Total expense 950,962 
  
Adjustment of previously reported multimedia revenue 616,750 
          Total increase in change in net assets $ 1,567,712 

 
 
NOTE 19 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Subsequent to year-end Athletics entered into a settlement agreement with one of its employees.  Under the terms of the 
settlement agreement, Athletics agreed to pay a lump sum to the employee on or before December 24. 2009, as well as 
continue health insurance premiums and life insurance premiums through March 30, 2010 and June 30, 2010, respectively.   
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